
Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 
Meeting Materials for Special Meeting 

February 27, 2024 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1. MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 11, 2023, KENTUCKY HORSE RACING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING ...... 1 

2. PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 810 KAR 7:040 ........................................................................................ 12 

3. LEXINGTON TROTS BREEDERS ASSOCIATION, LLC’S REQUEST TO AMEND SECTION R OF ITS 2024
APPLICATION TO CONDUCT LIVE HORSE RACING, SIMULCASTING, AND PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING ...... 38 

4. KQHPAA DEVELOPMENT FUND REQUEST PERTAINING TO REVOLUTIONARY RACING, LLC’S (“SANDY’S
RACING & GAMING”) 2024 RACE MEET ................................................................................................. 41 

5. KTDF REQUESTS PERTAINING TO KEENELAND ASSOCIATION, INC.’S 2024 SPRING RACE MEET .............. 44 

6. KTDF REQUESTS PERTAINING TO CHURCHILL DOWNS RACETRACK, LLC’S 2024 SPRING RACE MEET ...... 56 

7. CHURCHILL DOWNS RACETRACK, LLC’S REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF BACKSIDE IMPROVEMENT FUND
PROJECTS ............................................................................................................................................... 65 

8. WKY DEVELOPMENT, LLC’S PROPOSED 2024 SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS ......................................... 68 

9. REVOLUTIONARY RACING KENTUCKY, LLC’S (“SANDY’S RACING & GAMING”) PROPOSED 2024 SPRING
RACE MEET OFFICIALS ............................................................................................................................ 70 

10. RATIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S APPROVAL OF TURFWAY PARK, LLC’S REQUEST TO AMEND
SECTION R OF ITS 2024 APPLICATION TO CONDUCT LIVE HORSE RACING, SIMULCASTING, AND PARI-
MUTUEL WAGERING .............................................................................................................................. 72 

11. CHURCHILL DOWNS RACETRACK, LLC'S PROPOSED 2024 SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS AND DATE
PREFERENCE SYSTEM ............................................................................................................................. 76 

12. KEENELAND ASSOCIATION, INC.’S PROPOSED 2024 SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS AND DATE PREFERENCE
SYSTEM .................................................................................................................................................. 81 

DIVISION REPORTS 

• THOROUGHBRED RULINGS ........................................................................................................................... 86 

• STANDARDBRED RULINGS .......................................................................................................................... 100 

• VETERINARY DIVISION ................................................................................................................................ 105 

• PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING DIVISION ........................................................................................................... 109 

• SPORTS WAGERING DIVISION ..................................................................................................................... 113 



Page | 1  
 

MINUTES OF THE DECEMBER 11, 2023, KENTUCKY HORSE RACING COMMISSION SPECIAL MEETING 
Date:  December 11, 2023 at 10:00 a.m.   
Place:  Kentucky Horse Racing Commission Conference Room, 4047 Iron Works Parkway, Lexington, Kentucky 40511 
 
Members Present:  Commissioner Mike Berry, Commissioner Dr. Naveed Chowhan, Commissioner Dr. Tiffany Daniels, 
Commissioner William L.S. Landes, Commissioner Charles O’Connor, Commissioner Catherine Parke, Commissioner C. Frank Shoop, 
Commissioner James E. Worley; Commissioner Michael F. Dudgeon; Commissioner Lesley Howard  
 
Ex-officio Members Present:  Secretary Ray Perry; Sydney Montgomery, serving as proxy on behalf of Secretary Jeff Noel; Sarah 
Cronan, serving as proxy on behalf of Secretary Lindy Casebier  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

I. Call to Order and Roll Call 3 - 5 
 

 
             

Executive Director Jamie Eads called the meeting of the 
Kentucky Horse Racing Commission (KHRC) to order. She  
explained that Chair Rabinowitz was involved in an auto 
accident and was unable to attend the meeting.  Roll call was 
taken and a quorum was recognized. 
 

No action taken. 

II. New Business  
    Tab 1: Approve minutes of 
the October 31, 2023 Kentucky 
Horse Racing Commission 
Meeting  
 
 
 

5 - 42 
5 - 6 

 
Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve minutes of the October 31, 2023, 
Kentucky Horse Racing Commission Meeting. Motion by 
Commissioner Landes. Second by Commissioner O’Connor.  
 
Deputy Executive Director Waqas Ahmed was assigned the 
floor and explained that behind tab one were the minutes from 
the October 31, 2023 meeting.  KHRC staff recommended 
approval.   

 
Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
minutes of the 
October 31, 
2023, Kentucky 
Horse Racing 
Commission 



  

Page | 2  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

 Meeting. 
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 2:  2024 Meeting schedule 
and calendar  

8 - 10 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission for approval of the 2024 meeting schedule and 
calendar.  Motion by Commissioner Berry, second by 
Commissioner Parke. 
 
Executive Administrative Secretary Mariah Dietz was assigned 
the floor and explained that the proposed schedule was for 
meetings to be bi-monthly on the third Tuesday of every other 
month, except for December, which was scheduled for the 
second Tuesday of that month. Approval was recommended by 
KHRC Staff.  
 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
the 2024 
meeting 
schedule and 
calendar.  
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 3:   Renewal of Churchill 
Downs Racetrack’s license for a 
simulcast facility. 

7 – 8  Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission for renewal of Churchill Downs Racetrack’s license 
for a simulcast facility.  Motion by Commissioner Parke, second 
by Commissioner Daniels. 
 
Deputy Executive Director Waqas Ahmed explained that 
Churchill Downs Racetrack LLC submitted a request to continue 
its operations as a simulcast facility.  KHRC staff recommended 
approval. 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
the Renewal of 
Churchill Downs 
Racetrack’s 
license for a 
simulcast 
facility. Motion 



  

Page | 3  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

carried with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 
 

Tab 4:  Approval of the 
totalizer service license for 
2024.  

10 - 12 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission for approval of the totalizer service license for 
2024.  Motion by Commissioner Landes, second by 
Commissioner O’Connor. 
 
Director Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Compliance Andy Conway 
was assigned the floor and explained that three renewal 
applications were received for totalizer services in 2024.  All 
applications were reviewed, and documents were provided 
pursuant to 810 KAR Chapter 3.  KHRC Staff recommended 
approval of the applicants as listed under agenda item 4.  
 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
the totalizer 
service license. 
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 
 

Tab 5:  Approval of advanced 
deposit account wagering 
licenses for 2024.   

12 - 13 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission for approval of advanced deposit account 
wagering licenses for 2024.  Motion by Commissioner Shoop, 
second by Commissioner O’Connor. 
 
Director Pari-Mutuel Wagering and Compliance Andy Conway 
was assigned the floor and explained that eight applications 
were received for advanced deposit wagering licenses for 2024.  
All applications were filed before the deadline. Following 
review, the  KHRC staff recommended approval of the 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
of advanced 
deposit account 
wagering 
licenses for 
2024. 
Motion carried 
with no 



  

Page | 4  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

applications from the entities provided behind tab 5 of the 
agenda.  
 

objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 6:  Churchill Downs 
Racetrack LLC’s application for 
monies from Backside 
Improvement fund.  

13 - 16 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission for approval of Churchill Downs Racetrack LLC’s 
application for monies from Backside Improvement fund. 
Motion by Commissioner Worley, second by Commissioner 
Landes. 
 
Director of Incentives and Development Drew Connors was 
assigned the floor and explained that the KHRC received two 
Backside Improvement Fund requests from Churchill Downs 
Racetrack, LLC for the replacement of plywood and sub-roofs on 
multiple barns that will total $233,548. The second request was 
for the Kentucky HBPA trailer renovation on the backside of 
Churchill Downs, with the cost to be split with HBPA for $14,800.  
Approval was recommended by KHRC staff.  
Commissioner Landes inquired as to the account balance, which 
is $287,748.27.  
 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
Churchill Downs 
Racetrack LLC’s 
application for 
monies from 
Backside 
Improvement 
fund. 
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 7:  Approval of KTDF 
requests pertaining to Turfway 
Park’s 2023 holiday and 
winter/spring race meet.  

16 - 18 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve of KTDF requests pertaining to Turfway 
Park’s 2023 holiday and winter/spring race meet.  Motion by 
Commissioner Worley, second by Commissioner Shoop.   
 
Director of Incentives and Development Drew Connors was 
assigned the floor and explained at two meetings of the 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
of KTDF 
requests 
pertaining to 



  

Page | 5  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

Kentucky Thoroughbred Development Fund Advisory 
Committee, they considered requests from Turfway Park.  The 
requests were to help Turfway Park fund their KTDF purses 
while increasing the strength of the overall racing circuit. 
Kentucky Downs requested a transfer of $1 million of KTDF 
earnings to Turfway Park at the conclusion of their race meet.  
Turfway Park requested the use of $56,000 in KTDF earnings to 
promote, enhance, improve, and encourage the continued 
development of the Thoroughbred breeding industry in 
Kentucky.  
 
The KTDF Advisory Committee along with Kentucky HBPA and 
KTA-KTOB and KHRC staff recommended approval.  

Turfway Park’s 
2023 holiday 
and 
winter/spring 
race meet.   
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 8:  Approval of the 
Kentucky Sire Stakes 
Commonwealth, Goldenrod 
and Mini-Series of 2024 

18 - 20 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve the Kentucky Sire Stakes 
Commonwealth, Goldenrod, and Mini-Series during 2024.  
Motion by Commissioner Landes, second by Commissioner 
O’Connor.   
 
Director of Incentives and Development Drew Connors was 
assigned the floor and explained that the Kentucky 
Standardbred Development Fund and Kentucky Standardbred 
Breeders’ Incentive Fund Advisory Panel recommended 
approval of the dates and conditions regarding the 2024 Sire 
Stakes.  Oak Grove will increase purses by 1.1 million, Red Mile 
will increase their purses by $1,020,000 and Cumberland Run 
will increase their purses by $820,000.   

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
the Kentucky 
Sire Stakes 
Commonwealth, 
Goldenrod, and 
Mini-Series of 
2024.  
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 



  

Page | 6  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

The Advisory Committee also decided to extend the stallion 
bonus for the program to cover all races for 2- and 3-year-olds 
in the Kentucky Sire Stakes and through the Kentucky Proud 
Series.  The cap will be $2 million for payout for the year, making 
the additional expenditures between $3.5 and $5 million for 
2024.   
Approval is recommended by KHRC staff.  
 

Tab 9:   Approval of the 
Kentucky Proud Series of 2024   

20 - 22 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve the Kentucky Proud Series for 2024.  
Motion by Commissioner Worley, second by Commissioner 
Shoop.  
 
Director of Incentives and Development Drew Connors was 
assigned the floor and explained that the Kentucky 
Standardbred Development Fund and Kentucky Standardbred 
Breeders’ Incentive Fund Advisory Panel recommend continued 
support of the harness racing at Kentucky fairs through the 
Kentucky Proud Series.  Approval is also recommended by KHRC 
staff. The Kentucky Proud Series will consist of seven events and 
a final with purses of $1,500 per entry per division, with a 
minimum purse of $6,000 per division for each event and a final 
purse of $60,000.  The proposed race dates and conditions for 
the 2024 Kentucky Proud Series is in the meeting materials and 
is recommended by KHRC Staff.   
  

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
the Kentucky 
Proud Series of 
2024.     
 Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 



  

Page | 7  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

Tab 10:  Approval of the 
release of uncashed pari-
mutuel tickets to the Kentucky 
Health and Welfare Fund.  

22 – 27  Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve of the release of uncashed pari-
mutuel tickets to the Kentucky Health and Welfare Fund.  
Motion by Commissioner Parke, second by Commissioner 
O’Connor.   
 
Director of Incentives and Development Drew Connors was 
assigned the floor and explained the annual request from the 
Executive Director of the Kentucky Racing Health and Welfare 
Fund for the release of uncashed pari-mutuel tickets.  This is a 
non-profit charitable corporation in its 45th year of operation 
and it has provided millions in healthcare and retirement 
benefits to the backstretch workers.  The total for unclaimed 
tickets as of July 1, 2023 is $1,442,712.93.  Staff have reviewed 
the materials submitted and recommend approval. 
 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to release 
of uncashed 
pari-mutuel 
tickets to the 
Kentucky Health 
and Welfare 
Fund.    
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 11: Approval of the 
release of the uncashed pari-
mutuel tickets for the 
Kentucky Proud Series.   
 

27 - 29 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve of the release of the uncashed pari-
mutuel tickets for the Kentucky Proud Series.  Motion by 
Commissioner Shoop, second by Commissioner Berry.  
 
Director of Incentives and Development Drew Connors was 
assigned the floor and explained that KRS 230.398 states that 
any uncashed pari-mutuel tickets collected by a licensee 
conducting harness racing shall be used for harness racing 
events at county fairs, now called the Kentucky Proud Series.  
The uncashed tickets this year totaled $40,955.52.  Staff 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
of the release of 
the uncashed 
pari-mutuel 
tickets for the 
Kentucky Proud 
Series.   
Motion carried 
with no 



  

Page | 8  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

reviewed submitted materials and have approved the 
recommendation.   

 

objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 12: Ratification of 
Executive Director Eads’ 
approval of the amendments 
to the Kentucky Sports 
Wagering Catalog.  

29 -32  Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission ratify Executive Director Eads’ approval of the 
amendments to the Kentucky Sports Wagering Catalog.  Motion 
by Commissioner Worley, second by Commissioner Parke. 
 
Director of Sports Wagering Hans Stokke was assigned the floor 
and explained that amendments to the Sports Wagering Catalog 
needed to be ratified.  Additions to the catalog included Athletes 
Unlimited (basketball, lacrosse, softball, and volleyball); NCAA 
Volleyball; TGL (Tomorrow’s Golf League); UFC Contender 
Series, MMA; and H2H Global Gaming League, (SIS NBA2k 
basketball). Executive Director Jamie Eads approved these 
amendments to the catalog and once ratified the catalog would 
be made available online.  
 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to ratify her 
approval of the 
amendments to 
the Kentucky 
Sports Wagering 
Catalog. 
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 13: Approval of sports 
wagering service provider 
licenses for 2024. 
 

32 - 35 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve sports wagering service provider 
licenses for 2024. Motion by Commissioner O’Connor, second 
by Commissioner Worley. 
 
Director of Sports Wagering Hans Stokke was assigned the floor 
and explained that the service providers require an initial fee of 
$50,000 and a renewal fee of $10,000.  Applicants must submit 
relevant documentation that outlines their organizational 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
sports wagering 
service provider 
licenses for 2024.  
Motion carried 
with no 



  

Page | 9  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

structure, key personnel, technical requirements, and 
certification.  Nine applicants were approved for temporary 
service provider license on August 22, 2023, and all nine have 
requested renewal of the licenses for 2024.  KHRC Staff have 
reviewed these submissions and recommend approval of the 
service provider applications for 2024.   
 

objections or 
abstentions. 

Tab 14:  Voluntary 

Implementation Agreement 
with the Horseracing 

Integrity and Safety Authority 
and the Horseracing Integrity 
and Welfare Unit for 2024. 

 

35 - 42 Executive Director Jamie Eads requested a motion from the 
Commission to approve the 2024 Voluntary Implementation 
Agreement with the Horseracing Integrity and Safety Authority 
and the Horseracing Integrity and Welfare Unit . Motion by 
Commissioner Landes, second by Commissioner Parke. 

 
General Counsel Jennifer Wolsing was assigned the floor and 
explained that the KHRC attorneys and the attorneys for HISA 
and HIWU have met and discussed the Voluntary 
Implementation Agreement.  The Agreement and the any 
changes are included in the meeting materials. KHRC staff 
recommended approval of the agreement.    

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to approve 
the 2024 
Voluntary 
Implementation 
Agreement with 
the Horseracing 
Integrity and 
Safety Authority 
and the 
Horseracing 
Integrity and 
Welfare Unit . 
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 
 



  

Page | 10  
 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

Division Reports  

a.  Thoroughbred Rulings  
 
 

 

b. Standardbred Rulings 
 
 
 

c. Veterinary Division  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42 - 51 
42 - 43 

 
 
 

43 - 44 
 
 
 

44 - 48  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

48 - 49 
 

 
Chief State Steward Barbara Borden stated that the rulings were 
in the meeting materials and that the running total for the year 
was included.  
 
State Racing Judge & Steward Patricia Cooksey presented the 
report and explained that all fines and suspensions have been 
paid except one.   
 
Chief Racing Veterinarian Dr. Nick Smith was assigned the floor 
and stated that there were two reports and the first one was 
Keeneland Fall 2023 Meet.  There were 1,474 total starts, 399 
post-race samples, and 39 veterinary scratches.  Of the 
scratches, 30 were pre-race and 9 were on-track.  For the on-
track scratches, 6 were soundness-related and 3 were due to 
gate or paddock injuries. 63 horses were placed on the vet’s list. 
There were 12 ambulance runs and 1 racing fatality, which was 
musculoskeletal.  
The second report was for Churchill Downs’ Fall 2023 Meet, 
which had 1,742 starts with 529 post-race samples collected.  44 
veterinary scratches occurred, of which 29 were pre-race and 15 
were on-track.  76 horses were placed on the vet’s list. There 
were 7 ambulance runs and 2 fatalities, both of which were 
musculoskeletal injuries.  
 
The last document provided is the thoroughbred racing fatality 
chart total for 2007 to present.  
 

No action taken. 
Informational 
purposes only.  



  

Page | 11  
 

NOTE:  The meeting materials and any amendments and/or supplements thereto, subject to any applicable exemptions, and the 
official Transcript are incorporated by reference as if set forth fully herein. 

AGENDA ITEM 
TRANSCRIPT 

PAGE 
NUMBER(S) 

DISCUSSION / CONCLUSIONS / RECOMMENDATIONS ACTION TAKEN 

d.  Pari-mutual Wagering & 
Compliance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

e. Sports Wagering  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

49 - 51 

Pari-Mutuel Wagering Division Director Andy Conway presented 
the report for the fiscal year for October and stated that 
Keeneland had a 6% increase in on-track wagers compared to 
last year.  Simulcast wagering had a decrease during that time.  
Oak Grove and the Mint Bowling Green had significant increases 
in volume; wagers on historical races had a grown through 
October with over $20 million in additional wagers for the 
month of the Derby.   
 
Sports Wagering Director Hans Stokke presented the sports 
wagering market report that reflected data from September and 
October of the fiscal year.  Highlights from the first report period 
include a total of handle of $45,862,901 wagered in September 
2023, generating $321,965 in Kentucky sports wagering excise 
tax. October 2023 saw a total handle of $294,950,219 and the 
Kentucky sports wagering excise tax collected was $7,618,787.  

IV.  Adjournment 
 
 
 

52 With no other business, Executive Director Jamie Eads 
requested a motion to adjourn the December 11, 2023 
meeting.  Motion by Commissioner Berry, second by 
Commissioner Worley.  
Meeting adjourned. 
 

Executive 
Director Jamie 
Eads called for a 
vote to adjourn.  
Motion carried 
with no 
objections or 
abstentions. 



Page | 12  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Jennifer Wolsing, General Counsel 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO 810 KAR 7:040 

The Kentucky Horse Racing Commission recommends the following proposed amendments to 810 
KAR 7:040: Kentucky Standardbred Development Fund and Kentucky Standardbred Breeders’ 
Incentive Fund. This version of proposed amendments includes suggested edits from the group. 

1. Amend the definition of “Kentucky-bred” in Section 1 as follows: 

(4) "Kentucky-bred" means a standardbred horse that is: 
 (a) Foaled out of a standardbred mare that is registered with the commission [and meets the 
requirements of this administrative regulation]; or 
 (b) Sired by a standardbred stallion standing [residing] in Kentucky that is registered with the 
commission [that meets the requirements of this administrative regulation]. 
 
This proposed amendment removes the phrase “and meets the requirements of this administrative 
regulation.” This allows 810 KAR 5:080: Kentucky Proud Series to use the term “Kentucky-bred” in 
its participation requirements for the Kentucky Proud Series, without requiring Kentucky Proud 
Series horses to conform to other requirements in 810 KAR 7:040, such as nomination and 
sustaining fees. 

The amendment also removes the term “residing” and substitutes the correct term “standing.” 

Additionally, the amendment clarifies that the stallion has to be registered with the Commission to 
sire a Kentucky-bred foal. This matches the requirements for mares. 

2. Amend the definition of “Stallion residing in Kentucky” as follows: 

(8) "Stallion standing [residing] in Kentucky" means a stallion physically located and standing in 
Kentucky for 180 days of the calendar year in which the stallion is registered with the commission 
that[,] does not service mares in any other state[, jurisdiction, or country] outside Kentucky during the 
calendar year in which the stallion is registered.  
 
This proposed amendment removes the term “residing” and substitutes the correct term “standing.” 

The amendment also clarifies that the stallion must be registered with the Commission. 



  

Page | 13  
 

Additionally, the amendment clarifies the Panel and the Commission’s intent for this regulation, by 
removing confusing language indicating that a stallion shall not service mares in any jurisdiction or 
country outside of Kentucky when the stallion is registered. 

3. Clarify a foal’s eligibility requirements for the Sire Stakes as follows: 

(1) In order to qualify for the Kentucky Sire Stakes, a foal shall be a two (2) or three (3) year old 
Kentucky-bred and shall maintain eligibility for the KSDF and KSBIF as established in Sections 16, 
19, and 20 of this regulation. 
 
This proposed amendment clarifies that a foal shall maintain its eligibility, as established in Sections 
16, 19, and 20 of 810 KAR 7:040. 

4. Clarify the Panel and the Commission’s intent for participating stallions as follows: 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, semen from a stallion standing in Kentucky may be shipped to mares 
in any jurisdiction outside of Kentucky at any time during the calendar year in which the stallion is 
registered. Additionally, a registered stallion may shuttle to countries in the Southern Hemisphere to 
service mares, provided the stallion meets all other standing requirements. But, a registered stallion 
shall not service mares in any country, other than the United States or countries in the Southern 
Hemisphere by way of shuttle. Also, a registered stallion shall not shuttle to any state or jurisdiction 
in North America, other than Kentucky, in order to service mares. The changes in this subsection are 
effective starting with the 2020 breeding season and in subsequent years. 

 
This proposed amendment clarifies the intent of the Panel and the Commission by stating that a 
stallion standing in Kentucky may ship semen to mares in any jurisdiction outside of Kentucky during 
the calendar year in which he is registered. 

Additionally, the amendment states that a stallion may shuttle to any countries in the Southern 
Hemisphere to service mares, provided the stallion meets all other standing requirements. However, 
the amendment does not allow participating stallions to service mares in any other country, other 
than the United States or countries in the Southern Hemisphere, by way of shuttle. Furthermore, 
stallions shall not shuttle to any location in North America, other than Kentucky, in order to service 
mares. 

Of note, this provision is retroactive to the 2020 breeding season, in order to ensure that the 
Standardbred incentive program is consistent with other breeds and to bring the regulation’s 
language into conformity with KHRC practices. 

 

The KHRC staff recommends the above proposed amendments. 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny   



  

Page | 14  
 



  

Page | 15  
 



  

Page | 16  
 



  

Page | 17  
 



  

Page | 18  
 



  

Page | 19  
 



  

Page | 20  
 



  

Page | 21  
 



  

Page | 22  
 



  

Page | 23  
 



  

Page | 24  
 



  

Page | 25  
 



  

Page | 26  
 



  

Page | 27  
 



  

Page | 28  
 



  

Page | 29  
 



  

Page | 30  
 



  

Page | 31  
 



  

Page | 32  
 



  

Page | 33  
 



  

Page | 34  
 



  

Page | 35  
 



  

Page | 36  
 



  

Page | 37  
 

 



  

Page | 38  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                        

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Jennifer Wolsing, General Counsel  

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: 
LEXINGTON TROTS BREEDERS ASSOCIATION, LLC’S REQUEST TO AMEND SECTION R OF ITS 
2024 APPLICATION TO CONDUCT LIVE HORSE RACING, SIMULCASTING, AND PARI-MUTUEL 
WAGERING 

 
On February 1, 2024, Lexington Trots Breeders Association, LLC (“Red Mile”) requested approval 
for a change in post time for nine (9) of its 2024 Sunday live racing cards. The Red Mile is currently 
approved for a post time of 1:00 p.m., but they want to change the post time to 5:05 p.m. The 
affected dates are as follows: July 21, July 28, August 4, August 11, August 18, August 25, 
September 1, September 8, and September 15. The closing Sunday, October 6, will remain as a 
1:00 p.m. first post. 
 
The Red Mile believes that the later post time will grow track attendance and handle, based on a 
Sunday evening post during 2023. Additionally, a later post time can better showcase the Red Mile’s 
racing product and the Kentucky Sire Stakes program to a wider audience with less competition for 
its export signal. 
 
This change has been approved by the Kentucky Harness Horsemen’s Association. 
 
The KHRC staff recommends approval. 
 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

  



  

Page | 39  
 

 



  

Page | 40  
 

 

 

 

PO Box 8506 

Lexington, KY 40533 

 

February 05, 2024 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

The Kentucky Harness Horsemen’s Association approves The Red Mile’s request for Post Time 
changes. 

 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

       /s/ Amanda Stephens 

 

Amanda Stephens 

Executive Secretary  

 

  



  

Page | 41  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y     

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Drew Conners, Incentives & Development Director 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: KQHPAA DEVELOPMENT FUND REQUEST PERTAINING TO REVOLUTIONARY RACING, LLC’S 
(“SANDY’S RACING & GAMING”) 2024 RACE MEET  

On February 7, 2024, the KQHPAA Advisory Committee met and considered the following request 
from Revolutionary Racing Kentucky, LLC d/b/a Sandy’s Racing & Gaming regarding their 2024 race 
meet at The Red Mile. 

Sandy’s race meet will consist of six race days, beginning Sunday, March 17 through Tuesday, 
March 24, 2024.  

Pursuant to 810 KAR 7:060 Section 6, Sandy’s is proposing to use of $60,000 in KQHPAA funds to 
supplement the purses of six races at their upcoming race meet. These supplements will add 
$10,000 per race, paying first through fifth places to eligible Kentucky Quarter Horses who were bred 
and foaled in Kentucky.   

These projections are based on a KQHPAA earned balance of $720,634 at the end of December 31, 
2023, with HHR wagering at Sandy’s being the primary driver.  

The KQHPAA Advisory Committee along with the Kentucky Quarter Horse Racing Association 
recommend approval. 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 



  

Page | 42  
 



  

Page | 43  
 

  



  

Page | 44  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Drew Conners, Incentives & Development Director, KHRC 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: KTDF REQUESTS PERTAINING TO KEENELAND ASSOCIATION, INC.’S 2024 SPRING RACE MEET 

On February 1, 2024, the KTDF Advisory Committee considered the following requests regarding 
Keeneland’s 2024 Spring Race Meet: 

The KTDF purse structure will consist of 16 race days beginning Friday, April 5th through Friday, 
April 26th. Keeneland is proposing KTDF purses in the range of $5 – $5.2 million.  These projections 
are based on a KTDF earned balance of $1.9 million at the end of their 2023 Fall Meet.  Keeneland 
is projecting additional earnings of $1.6 million to $1.8 million  by the end of their meet with HHR 
wagering at Keeneland-Red Mile (KRM) being the primary driver along with an additional $1.5 million 
to $1.7 million projected from Oak Grove per their contract. To encourage participation during the 
meet, Keeneland will pay out KTDF purses through last place to all KTDF eligible horses. 

To help Keeneland fund their KTDF purses while increasing the strength of the overall Kentucky 
Racing Circuity, Keeneland is also seeking a $1.25 million dollar transfer from Kentucky Downs. 

In accordance with KRS.230.400, Keeneland is also requesting the use of $106,820 in KTDF to 
promote, enhance, improve and encourage the further and continued development of the Kentucky 
Thoroughbred breeding industry in Kentucky. 

The KTDF Advisory Committee along with the Kentucky HBPA and the KTA-KTOB recommend 
approval. 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  



  

Page | 45  
 



  

Page | 46  
 

  



Page | 47  
 



Page | 48  
 

  



  

Page | 49  
 

 



  

Page | 50  
 



  

Page | 51  
 



  

Page | 52  
 



  

Page | 53  
 



  

Page | 54  
 



  

Page | 55  
 

  



  

Page | 56  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Drew Conners, Incentives & Development Director, KHRC 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: KTDF REQUESTS PERTAINING TO CHURCHILL DOWNS RACETRACK, LLC’S 2024 SPRING RACE 
MEET 

On February 1, 2024, the KTDF Advisory Committee considered the following requests regarding 
Churchill Downs 2024 Spring Race Meet: 

The KTDF purse structure will consist of 43 race days beginning Saturday, April 27th through 
Sunday, June 30th. Churchill Downs is proposing KTDF purses in the range of $10.5 – $11 million.  
These projections are based on a KTDF earned balance of $6.7 million by the end of April 2024.  
Churchill is projecting additional earnings of $5 million by the end of July with HHR wagering at 
Derby City and Derby City Downtown being the primary driver.  To encourage participation during 
the meet, Churchill Downs will pay out KTDF purses through last place to all KTDF eligible horses.   

In accordance with KRS.230.400, Churchill Downs is also requesting the use of $200,000 in KTDF 
to promote, enhance, improve and encourage the further and continued development of the 
Kentucky Thoroughbred breeding industry in Kentucky. 

The KTDF Advisory Committee along with the Kentucky HBPA and the KTA-KTOB recommend 
approval. 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 

  



  

Page | 57  
 



  

Page | 58  
 



  

Page | 59  
 



  

Page | 60  
 



  

Page | 61  
 



  

Page | 62  
 



  

Page | 63  
 



  

Page | 64  
 

 

  



  

Page | 65  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y     

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Drew Conners, Incentives & Development Director 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: CHURCHILL DOWNS RACETRACK, LLC’S REQUEST FOR APPROVAL OF BACKSIDE 
IMPROVEMENT FUND PROJECTS  

In a letter dated February 2, 2024, the KHRC received the following Backside Improvement Fund 
Request from Churchill Downs Racetrack, LLC: 

Total for full scope of work:  $30,504 

• Roof Replacement for Barn M at Churchill Downs Trackside 

KHRC staff confirms the project meets the statutory requirements of KRS 230.218, 810 KAR 7:010 
and that funding is available.  KHRC will inspect the installation once the project is completed.  All 
invoices, photographs and communication will remain on file for Commission review.   

The Kentucky HBPA and the KTA-KTOB recommended approval of these requests. 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 

  



  

Page | 66  
 



  

Page | 67  
 

  



  

Page | 68  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039 
 
 
TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Patricia Cooksey, Presiding and Associate Standardbred Judge 

DATE: February 21, 2024 

RE: WKY DEVELOPMENT, LLC’S PROPOSED 2024 SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS 

By letter dated February 2, 2024, Cara Collins, Racing & Equine Manager of WKY Development, 
LLC (Oak Grove), requests approval of the attached roster of Racing Officials for its 2024 Spring 
Race Meet. Please be advised all judges have been accredited by Racing Officials Accreditation 
Program (ROAP) and all officials will be licensed by Kentucky Horse Racing Commission. 

 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 

 

 

 

  



  

Page | 69  
 

  



  

Page | 70  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039 
                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Patricia Cooksey, Presiding and Associate Standardbred Judge  

DATE: February 21, 2024 

RE: REVOLUTIONARY RACING KENTUCKY, LLC’S (“SANDY’S RACING & GAMING”) PROPOSED 2024 
SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS 

 

By letter sent February 1, 2024, John Marshall, President of Revolutionary Racing Kentucky, LLC 
(Sandy’s Racing & Gaming), requests approval of the attached roster of Racing Officials for Sandy 
Ridge Racing’s 2024 Spring Race Meet conducted at Red Mile Racetrack. Please be advised all 
judges have been accredited by Racing Officials Accreditation Program (ROAP) and all officials will 
be licensed by the opening day of its meet.  

 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 

  



  

Page | 71  
 

 



  

Page | 72  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Barbara Borden, Chief State Steward 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: 
RATIFICATION OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S APPROVAL OF TURFWAY PARK, LLC’S REQUEST 
TO AMEND SECTION R OF ITS 2024 APPLICATION TO CONDUCT LIVE HORSE RACING, 
SIMULCASTING, AND PARI-MUTUEL WAGERING 

In its application for a license to conduct live horse racing, simulcasting and pari-mutuel wagering, 
Turfway Park, LLC (“Turfway Park”) sought and received an award of 2024 race dates, including 
January 19-20, 2024. On January 17, 2024, Turfway Park’s Director of Racing, Tyler Picklesimer, 
requested approval to cancel racing at Turfway Park on January 19-20, 2024, due to inclement 
weather in Florence, Kentucky. Mr. Picklesimer further requested to card one additional race nightly, 
starting Thursday. January 25th. Turfway Park will resume a normal race schedule starting Saturday, 
February 24th, with The Leonatus Stakes rescheduled for Friday, February 2nd.  In addition, Turfway 
Park received consent from the Kentucky Thoroughbred Owners & Breeders, Inc., as well as the 
Kentucky Horsemen’s Benevolent and Protective Association.  

 

Due to the time constraints of these requests, Executive Director Jamie Eads granted conditional 
approval for Turfway Park to cancel racing on January 19-20, 2024, and card one additional race 
nightly, starting Thursday, January 25th. KHRC staff recommends ratification of Executive Director 
Eads’ approval.   

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Rafity  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  



  

Page | 73  
 



  

Page | 74  
 

  



  

Page | 75  
 

 



  

Page | 76  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

  
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039 
                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                

TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Barbara Borden, Chief State Steward 

DATE February 21, 2024 

RE: CHURCHILL DOWNS RACETRACK, LLC'S PROPOSED 2024 SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS AND 
DATE PREFERENCE SYSTEM 

By letter sent January 17, 2024, Ben Huffman, Racing Secretary at Churchill Downs Racetrack, LLC 
(Churchill Downs), requests approval of the attached roster of Racing Officials and Date Preference 
System for Churchill Downs’ 2024 Spring Race Meet. Please be advised all Stewards have been 
accredited by Racing Officials Accreditation Program (ROAP) and all officials will be licensed by the 
first race date of the meet. 

 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 

  



  

Page | 77  
 

 
January 17, 2024 

 
Jamie Eads 

Executive Director 

Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

4063 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY  40511 

 
Dear Ms. Eads 

 
As required by the regulations set forth by the Kentucky Horse Racing Commission, 
attached is the list of officials for the 2024 Churchill Downs Spring Meet, along with 
the date preference rules, which will be used during this meet, for approval by the 
Kentucky Horse Racing Commission. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 

 

 

D. Ben Huffman 

Racing Secretary 

 
Enclosure 

 

700 CENTRAL AVENUE • LOUISVILLE, KY 40208 • (502) 636-4400 • CHURCHILLDOWNS.COM  • 
KENTUCKYDERBY.COM 

 



  

Page | 78  
 

CHURCHILL DOWNS LIST OF OFFICIALS FOR THE 2024 SPRING MEET 
 
ASSOCIATION STEWARD:     Tyler Picklesimer 
         
RACING SECRETARY:      Ben Huffman 
 
ASST. RACING SECRETARY/STAKES COORDINATOR  Dan Bork 
 
HORSE IDENTIFIER:      Melinda Vest 
ASST. HORSE IDENTIFIER:     Jeff Furmanski 
 
CLERK OF SALES:      David Heitzmann 
 
JOCKEY ROOM CUSTODIAN:     Charlie Woods 
 
CLAIMS CLERK:       Kenneth Bourque 
 
PROGRAM COORDINATOR:     Tiffany Bourque 
 
HORSEMEN’S BOOKKEEPER:     Carol Renn 
 
STARTER:       Scott Jordan 
 
OUTRIDERS:       Greg Blasi 
        Lee Lockwood 
        Shane Hoodenpyle 
 
SR. DIRECTOR SECURITY AND SAFETY:    Josh Ball 
 
DIRECTOR OF MUTUELS:     Matt Bonar 
 
TIMER:        American Teletimer 
 
CLOCKER:       Peter Vestal 
 
ENTRY CLERKS, PADDOCK AND PLACING JUDGES:   Steve Obrekaitis 
        Jorie Gorski 
        Baley Hare 
        Autumn Charley   
        Allison DeLuca 
        Wallace Smithhart 
        Tim Day 
 
ANNOUNCER:       Travis Stone 
 
STALL MANAGER:      Steve Hargrave 
 



  

Page | 79  
 

DATE PREFERENCE SYSTEM 
 

The Date System of preference will be used at Churchill Downs as described below: 
 
Foal Certificates and digital foal certificates no longer are required to be on file in the 
racing office to enter or start at Churchill Downs; however, foal certificates and digital foal 
certificates must be on file to obtain a preference date and to get a horse tattooed. 
 
Each day’s overnight will list the dates of horses in and on the also-eligible list to enable trainers 
to see what dates are getting horses in over-filled races. 

1. In over-filled races, preference will be given to horses in order of their assigned 
preference dates, earliest date first. Horses having identical dates will be chosen by lot, 
however, where entry and running dates are the same, the horse with the entry date will 
have preference. 

2. All horses intended for racing at Churchill Downs will be assigned a preference date. 
Dates assigned will be of two types: 
 

3. FOR A ZERO DATE foal papers and digital foal papers must be turned in to the 
identifier by Tuesday, April 23, 2024. 
 
E-Date 
This date will correspond to: 
a) The day on which a horse’s foal papers or digital foal papers are submitted to the 

identifier (the earliest date being the day when entries are first taken for the meeting). 
An unnamed horse will not receive an E-date. 

b) The day on which a horse is first entered if his papers or digital foal papers are not on 
file with the identifier. 

To qualify for the latter E-date, a horse must have been excluded from a race which 
appears on the overnight or he must have been entered in a condition book race which 
failed to fill through insufficient entries. 
R-Date 
This date will correspond to the day of a horse’s most recent race at Churchill Downs. An 
R-Date will also be assigned to a horse which scratches. 

4. A horse retains his R-Date until he receives a newer R-Date. No horse with an established 
R-Date may receive an E-Date. A horse whose papers or digital papers are removed from 
the identifier’s office will lose his date and must subsequently re-establish a date in order 
to receive preference. A horse with an E-Date cannot receive a newer E-Date. Horses 
starting at another race track will forfeit any date they may have at Churchill Downs. 

5. Preference dates will consist of two categories: Dirt (D) and Turf (T). Preference dates 
are good for any type of race or distance.  

6. A horse that runs in a race, which has been taken off the turf will retain its turf date. A 
scratched horse will receive an R-date from the date scratched. 

7. When a race is taken off the turf, main track only (MTO) horses will receive an R-Date if 
they run or scratch. If the race remains on the turf, main track only (MTO) horses will 
retain their previous date and will not be permitted to start. 

8. No E-Date will be assigned to the second choice of an unsplit same-owner entry. 



  

Page | 80  
 

9. A horse which has been placed on a list (veterinarian, steward, starter or paddock judge) 
will lose their date and be assigned an R-Date corresponding to the day removed from 
list. 

10. A horse which is a scheduled starter in a cancelled race will not receive an R-Date for 
that race but will retain its previous date. 

11. The draw of stakes and handicap race is not subject to date preference. 
12. Preference dates are transferred through change of ownership and changes in trainer after 

the proper transfer procedure have been completed through the Steward’s office and 
delivered to the Racing Secretary’s office. 

13. Date preference rules will not supersede KHRC rules regarding preference, eligibility or 
scratches. 

14. Winners will be preferred in all non maiden races.  
 
CONDITION PREFERENCE 

 
Horses are preferred by their available conditions in all allowance races beginning with Graded 
Stakes winners (Grade I-II-III), down through their allowance conditions (when allowance 
conditions are equal, and open stakes winners shall be preferred) providing the horse has finished 
1st, 2nd, 3rd or 4th for $50,000 or more since starting for less than $50,000. In allowance/optional 
claiming races a horse’s preference cannot exceed the condition of the race. Starter races for less 
than $40,000 will not be preferred. 
 
WINNERS ARE PREFERRED IN ALL NON-MAIDEN RACES. 
 
Also-Eligibles 
If there are any scratches in a race with also-eligibles, the also-eligible horses will be permitted 
to move into the race in the order listed on the overnight.  
 
810 KAR 4:010. HORSES 
 
The stewards may at any time require presentation of a horse’s registration certificate, virtual 
certificate, or racing permit or other proof of ownership.  
 
Upon claim, sale or any other transfer of ownership, the horse’s registration certificate or racing 
permit shall be given to the new owner, and any virtual certificate shall be transferred to the new 
owner electronically. The new owner shall report the change in ownership to the stewards.  
 
 

  

 

  



  

Page | 81  
 

Andy Beshear 
GO V E R N OR       

Jacqueline Coleman 
L I E U T E N A N T  GO V E R N O R 

Ray A. Perry 
S E C R E T A R Y  

DJ Wasson 
   D E P U T Y  S E C R E T A R Y                                                                                                                                                             

Jamie Eads 
E X E C U T IV E  D I R E C T O R  

Jonathan Rabinowitz 
C H A IR MA N 

 

 
 

PUBLIC PROTECTION CABINET 
Kentucky Horse Racing 

Commission                                                                                                                                                                                                                                  
4047 Iron Works Parkway 

Lexington, KY 40511 
Phone: (859) 246-2040 

Fax: (859) 246-2039 
 
 
TO: Kentucky Horse Racing Commission 

FROM: Barbara Borden, Chief State Steward 

DATE: February 21, 2024 

RE: KEENELAND ASSOCIATION, INC.’S PROPOSED 2024 SPRING RACE MEET OFFICIALS AND DATE 
PREFERENCE SYSTEM 

By letter dated February 1, 2024, Ashley Whalen, Director of Racing Administration at Keeneland 
Association, Inc. (Keeneland), requests approval of the attached roster of Racing Officials and Date 
Preference System for Keeneland’s 2024 Spring Race Meet. Please be advised all Stewards have 
been accredited by Racing Officials Accreditation Program (ROAP) and all officials will be licensed 
by the opening day of its meet. 

 

KHRC staff recommends approval. 

 

 

COMMISSION ACTION  

_____________ Approve  

_____________ Defer  

_____________ Deny  

 

  



  

Page | 82  
 



  

Page | 83  
 

 



  

Page | 84  
 



  

Page | 85  
 

  



  

Page | 86  
 

Thoroughbred Rulings

 

 

  



Page | 87  
 



  

Page | 88  
 



  

Page | 89  
 



  

Page | 90  
 



  

Page | 91  
 



  

Page | 92  
 



  

Page | 93  
 



  

Page | 94  
 



  

Page | 95  
 



  

Page | 96  
 

 

 



Page | 97  
 

 

  



Page | 98  
 



Page | 99  
 



Page | 100  
 

STANDARDBRED RULINGS 



Page | 101  
 

 

 



Page | 102  
 



Page | 103  
 

 

  



  

Page | 104  
 

 

 

  



  

Page | 105  
 

VETERINARY DIVISION 

 



Page | 106  
 

 



  

Page | 107  
 

 



  

Page | 108  
 

  



Page | 109  
 

Pari-Mutuel Wagering Division

 



  

Page | 110  
 

 



  

Page | 111  
 

 



  

Page | 112  
 

 



Page | 113  
 

SPORTS WAGERING DIVISION 

 



  

Page | 114  
 



Page | 115  
 



Page | 116  
 

 



  

Page | 117  
 

 


